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After 2 hard day at the books, students leave from the new school building to head toward home. Some
will walk, others ride the buses. One of the bus drivers stands patiently waiting for his riders.

The picture shows the new school building, now known as the Junior High “*A"" Building, constructed in
1%36-37.

CALEDONIA TOWNSHIP'S NEW SCHOOL IN 1936

The Caledonia Township School District was organized into a consolidated unit in 1935. It embraced 36
square miles of territory in Caledonia Township. Until the new building was built in the village of Caledonia
all of the pupils were transported by buses to two schools (Caledonia and Alaska) in the township.

In the fall of 1935 a P.W.A. (Public Works Administration) grant of $49,000 made it possible to make an
addition to the building in Caledonia. The district voted to bond the township for $60,000 to supplement the
grant from the government.

Robinson, Campau and Crowe were chosen by the Board of Education to serve as the architects because
of their broad experience in school building construction in and around Grand Rapids. Preliminary sketches
were presented to the Board of Education and the P.W.A., and received approval. Construction began in
March, 1936 and the building was occupied in November of that same year.
he grade school bullding which had cerved Caledonia since 1852 was tumned into e shop building. I wos

' ers, shop egquipment, and fools to asccommodste thirty boys In general shop end
nd seout headguartsrs.
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The 1921 high school building contained a home economics laboratory, health room, art room, and library.
The home economics laboratory accommodated twenty-four girls. It was equipped with kerosene and gas
stoves. Cupboards and shelves were recessed in the walls. Combination cooking and sewing tables were
provided. The health room was under the supervision of the home economics department. It provided a
quiet place to lie down for anyone feeling ill. The art room was well supplied with cupboards, shelving
space, and tables. Running water and a sink were provided for the art students. The library served as a
study hall for those students who did not have classes. It was under the care of student librarians each
period of the day. A handy work room where books could be repaired adjoined the library.

In the new 1936 addition a combination gymnasium and auditorium, commercial department, agricultural
room, chemistry and physics room, offices, stock room, toilets, locker rooms, and elementary grade rooms
were located.

The commercial room was equipped for 24 students of bookkeeping and 15 students in typing.
Commercial desks and chairs were in the bookkeeping room. A glass partition separated the two rooms so
that one teacher could supervise both.

The gymnasium-auditorium was equipped with bleachers to seat 350 for a basketball game. Folding
chairs were put up on the floor when it was used as an auditorium. It provided a seating capacity of 500.
The stage was located at one end of the gymnasium. A maple block flooring added much to the
attractiveness of the gymnasium.

Large locker rooms for both boys and girls had shower rooms, coaches' offices, and equipment rooms

adjoining. These rooms were located on the sides of the gymnasium so that they could serve as dressing
rooms for students when plays and musicals were given on the stage.

The administrative offices included a front office, equipped with a counter over a batiery of files, a
master program clock, teachers’ bulletin board, mail boxes, library of professional books, and desk for the
office clerk. A private office for the superintendent was adjacent to this room.

Each classroom was equipped with a thermostatically controlled heating system which also automatically
regulated the humidity. Steam radiators supplemented the heat supplied by the fan system.

The floors were terrazzo and asphalt tile. The walls were sufficiently rough to diffuse the light. The
classroom seating was movable so as to provide a flexible and efficient seating arrangement,

Adult classes in physical education, home economics, agriculture, and parent education were held
Wednesday evenings.

The enrollment of the school reached 450 students in 1936. A staff of sixteen full-time teachers and one
part-time teacher was then employed. Seven buses provided transportation to 300 of the rural pupils.

Gl T

Theresa Miller's first-grade class in the new A" Building.
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Caledonia School's growth was evidenced by the
needed expansion in 1936-37, with the construction
of what is known as the A"’ Building of the
present Junior High.
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FIFTH GRADE, 1936-37
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Front row: Lucy Cope, Leona Belson,
Janet Moored, Jeanette McoGowan, Un-
known, Unknown, Jack VanDuesen, Donna
Clark, Beverly Jousma;

Second row: Halph Lutz, Hazel Sarver,
Mathilda Klinge, Bernice Brower, Morma
Westfield, Dorothy Swarts, Jay Shook, Alan
VandenBerg, Doreen Gailey;

Third row: Albert Freeman, Jim BRell-
graph, Unknown, Wallace Graham, George
Bailey, Leonard Flynn, Eileen Miller, Grace
Mack, Unknown, Howard Jousma;

Back row: Robert Finkbeiner, Don Link,
Betty Baker, Sara Jane Jousma, Avis
Schantz, Lonabelle Douglas, Joyee Schantz,
Mildred Langkamp, John Dettman, Lorraine
Doornbos, teacher,

FIFTH AND SIXTH GRADES, 1935-36
Front row: Patricia Welton, Louise Cope, Wanda Pace, Eunice Fisher, Helen Schultz, Edith Cope, Beatrice Colburn, Sara LaFever,

Lois Lind, Esther Pace;

Second row: Warren Finkbeiner, Wendell Long, Clyde Peters, Robert Davison, Frances McCarly, teacher, Robert Swort, Leon

Raab, Eugene Schiefla, Robert Sheehan;

Back row: Claude Colburn, Robert Langkamp, Carl Hale, David Good, James Langkamp.
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GIRLS' BASKETBALL, 1932

Front row: Ruth Holly, Crystal Hacker, Olive Holly, Harriet Wenger, Louise Vincent, Thora Dygert, Marian Near, Faye Stauffer;
Back row: Thelma Boulard, Beryl Heller, Elvis Dutcher, Margaret Auble, Doris Dean, Joe Swartz, Darthea Middlebush, Miss Ruth
Woodman, coach.

BOARD OF EDUCATION, 1937

W. C. Brutom, President; Charles Finkbeiner, Treasurer;
Gilmer A. Huoyck, Secretary; John Jousma and Godfrey
Waldeck, Trustees




page 158

GIRLS' BASKETBALL, 1930-31

Front row: Gertrude Herman, Olive Holly, Vera Johnson, Louise Vincent, Alvena Mulder, Crystal Hacker;
Back row: Arletta Blough, Eleanor Smith, Elsie Stauffer, Miss Ruth Woodman, coach, Marian Near, Lucille Smith, Harriet
Wenger.

CALEDONIA HIGH SCHOOL STUDY HALL
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SCHOOL BAND, Directed by Arthur Berg

i

CALEDONIA HIGH SCHOOL AG CLASS
Russell Buxton, James Heyboer, Kenneth Leckrone, Hugh Kegerreis, Merle Lass, Ted Weaver.
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CALEDONIA ELEMENTARY KINDERGARTEN AND FIRST GRADE, 1935-36

Fromt row: Janet Timm, Lois Bush, Shifley Behrens, Unknown, Pauline Finkbeiner, Unknown, Unknown, Unknown, Harriet
Finkbeiner, Susan Pace, Donna Jean Tanner, Unknown, Marian Bellgraph, Unknown;

Second row: Alan Good. James Welton, Joyee Snyder, Alice Peters, Verle Crittendon, Virginia Miller, Alvena Mulder (Simpson),
teacher, Joyee Statsick, Unknown, Wilma Jean Miller, Larry LaFever, Lee Schantz {?), Paul Lind;

Third row: Unknown, James Morway, George Colburn, Richard Luneke, Gerald Good, William Braun, Unknown, Unknown,
Eugene Kaab, Eugene Dawson;

Back row: John Lind, James Sheehan, Edward Pace, — Foster, Wayne Jousma, William Robert Frisbie, David Finkbeiner,

Front row: B, Shook, Kenney Hale, Don Slaiger, Bob Maechels, Wallington Malehele, Pouline Good, Harriet Steuffer, Moories
Freeman, Marion Keagle, David Stanffer; _ - _ o
- ow: Unknown, Roger Taab, Althea Stauffer, James Finkbeincr, Lalisn Bhishier, Esther Barey, Jud ST, LA0 SOnitEar,

: Marion Freeman, Lin

'.';:.{!'nknm‘rr:_ Lyle '-r'.-'mw.:]., Fenneth Raab, Unknown, Unkmown
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